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violation is based on a policy or prac-
tice of the educational agency or insti-
tution, other recipient of Department
funds under any program administered
by the Secretary, or any third party
outside of an educational agency or in-
stitution.

(b) The Office investigates a timely
complaint filed by a parent or eligible
student, or conducts its own investiga-
tion when no complaint has been filed
or a complaint has been withdrawn, to
determine whether an educational
agency or institution or other recipient
of Department funds under any pro-
gram administered by the Secretary
has failed to comply with a provision of
the Act or this part. If the Office deter-
mines that an educational agency or
institution or other recipient of De-
partment funds under any program ad-
ministered by the Secretary has failed
to comply with a provision of the Act
or this part, it may also determine
whether the failure to comply is based
on a policy or practice of the agency or
institution or other recipient. The Of-
fice also investigates a timely com-
plaint filed by a parent or eligible stu-
dent, or conducts its own investigation
when no complaint has been filed or a
complaint has been withdrawn, to de-
termine whether a third party outside
of the educational agency or institu-
tion has failed to comply with the pro-
visions of §99.31(a)(6)(iii)(B) or has im-
properly redisclosed personally identi-
fiable information from education
records in violation of §99.33.

(Authority: 20 U.S.C. 1232g(b)(4)(B), (f) and
(8)

(c) A timely complaint is defined as
an allegation of a violation of the Act
that is submitted to the Office within
180 days of the date of the alleged vio-
lation or of the date that the complain-
ant knew or reasonably should have
known of the alleged violation.

(d) The Office may extend the time
limit in this section for good cause
shown.

(Authority: 20 U.S.C. 1232g(b)(4)(B), (f) and
)

[63 FR 11943, Apr. 11, 1988, as amended at 58
FR 3189, Jan. 7, 1993; 65 FR 41854, July 6, 2000;
73 FR 74854, Dec. 9, 2008; 76 FR 75643, Dec. 2,
2011]

34 CFR Subtitle A (7-1-23 Edition)

§99.65 What is the content of the no-
tice of investigation issued by the
Office?

(a) The Office notifies in writing the
complainant, if any, and the edu-
cational agency or institution, the re-
cipient of Department funds under any
program administered by the Sec-
retary, or the third party outside of an
educational agency or institution if it
initiates an investigation under
§99.64(b). The written notice—

(1) Includes the substance of the alle-
gations against the educational agency
or institution, other recipient, or third
party; and

(2) Directs the agency or institution,
other recipient, or third party to sub-
mit a written response and other rel-
evant information, as set forth in
§99.62, within a specified period of
time, including information about its
policies and practices regarding edu-
cation records.

(b) The Office notifies the complain-
ant if it does not initiate an investiga-
tion because the complaint fails to
meet the requirements of §99.64.

(Authority: 20 U.S.C. 1232g(g))

[73 FR 74855, Dec. 9, 2008, as amended at 76
FR 75643, Dec. 2, 2011]

§99.66 What are the responsibilities of
the Office in the enforcement proc-
ess?

(a) The Office reviews a complaint, if
any, information submitted by the edu-
cational agency or institution, other
recipient of Department funds under
any program administered by the Sec-
retary, or third party outside of an
educational agency or institution, and
any other relevant information. The
Office may permit the parties to sub-
mit further written or oral arguments
or information.

(b) Following its investigation, the
Office provides to the complainant, if
any, and the educational agency or in-
stitution, other recipient, or third
party a written notice of its findings
and the basis for its findings.

(c) If the Office finds that an edu-
cational agency or institution or other
recipient has not complied with a pro-
vision of the Act or this part, it may
also find that the failure to comply was
based on a policy or practice of the
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agency or institution or other recipi-
ent. A notice of findings issued under
paragraph (b) of this section to an edu-
cational agency or institution, or other
recipient that has not complied with a
provision of the Act or this part—

(1) Includes a statement of the spe-
cific steps that the agency or institu-
tion or other recipient must take to
comply; and

(2) Provides a reasonable period of
time, given all of the circumstances of
the case, during which the educational
agency or institution or other recipient
may comply voluntarily.

(d) If the Office finds that a third
party outside of an educational agency
or institution has not complied with
the provisions of §99.31(a)(6)(iii)(B) or
has improperly redisclosed personally
identifiable information from edu-
cation records in violation of §99.33,
the Office’s notice of findings issued
under paragraph (b) of this section—

(1) Includes a statement of the spe-
cific steps that the third party outside
of the educational agency or institu-
tion must take to comply; and

(2) Provides a reasonable period of
time, given all of the circumstances of
the case, during which the third party
may comply voluntarily.

(Authority: 20 U.S.C. 1232g(b)(4)(B), (f), and
(@)

[76 FR 75643, Dec. 2, 2011]

§99.67 How does the Secretary enforce
decisions?

(a) If an educational agency or insti-
tution or other recipient of Depart-
ment funds under any program admin-
istered by the Secretary does not com-
ply during the period of time set under
§99.66(c), the Secretary may take any
legally available enforcement action in
accordance with the Act, including, but
not limited to, the following enforce-
ment actions available in accordance
with part D of the General Education
Provisions Act—

(1) Withhold further payments under
any applicable program;

(2) Issue a complaint to compel com-
pliance through a cease and desist
order; or

(3) Terminate eligibility to receive
funding under any applicable program.

(b) If, after an investigation under
§99.66, the Secretary finds that an edu-

§99.67

cational agency or institution, other
recipient, or third party has complied
voluntarily with the Act or this part,
the Secretary provides the complain-
ant and the agency or institution,
other recipient, or third party with
written notice of the decision and the
basis for the decision.

(c) If the Office finds that a third
party, outside the educational agency
or institution, violates
§99.31(a)(6)(iii)(B), then the educational
agency or institution from which the
personally identifiable information
originated may not allow the third
party found to be responsible for the
violation of §99.31(a)(6)(iii)(B) access to

personally identifiable information
from education records for at least five
years.

(d) If the Office finds that a State or
local educational authority, a Federal
agency headed by an official listed in
§99.31(a)(3), or an authorized represent-
ative of a State or local educational
authority or a Federal agency headed
by an official listed in §99.31(a)(3), im-
properly rediscloses personally identi-
fiable information from education
records, then the educational agency or
institution from which the personally
identifiable information originated
may not allow the third party found to
be responsible for the improper re-
disclosure access to personally identifi-
able information from education
records for at least five years.

(e) If the Office finds that a third
party, outside the educational agency
or institution, improperly rediscloses
personally identifiable information
from education records in violation of
§99.33 or fails to provide the notifica-
tion required under §99.33(b)(2), then
the educational agency or institution
from which the personally identifiable
information originated may not allow
the third party found to be responsible
for the violation access to personally
identifiable information from edu-
cation records for at least five years.

(Authority: 20 U.S.C. 1232g(b)(4)(B) and (f); 20
U.S.C. 1234¢)

[76 FR 75643, Dec. 2, 2011]
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